M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
May 04, 2001
10: 52 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 95, Side A
SFC 01 # 95, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approxi mately 10:52 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Austerman

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Al so Attending: SENATOR JOHN COADERY; KURT PARKAN, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities;
DEVON M TCHELL, Debt Manager, Treasury Division and Executive
Director, Al aska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority, Departnent of
Revenue; DEN SE HENDERSON, staff to Representative Pete Kott; GUY
BELL, Director, Division of Retirenment and Benefits, Departnent of
Adm nistration; TIM ROGERS, Legislative Program Coordinator,
Municipality of Anchorage; JIM NORDLUND, Director, Division of
Public Assistance, Departnment of Health and Social Services;
REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COHQ LL, JR.; AV GRCSS;

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Anchorage: DAVID EBERLE, PE,
Regional Director, Central Region, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities;

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 218- Al RPORTS: BONDS/ CONSTR. FUNDY FACI LI TY CHARG

The Conmittee heard from the sponsor, the Departnent of

SFC- 01 (1) 05/ 04/ 01



Transportation and Public Facilities and Departnent of Revenue. The
bill moved from Conmttee.

HB 242-TRS & PERS REEMPLOY & MED BENEFI TS; COLA

The Conmittee heard from the sponsor, the Departnent of
Adm nistration and the Mnicipality of Anchorage. A committee
substitute was adopted and the bill was held in Commttee.

HB 142- AK TEMP. ASSI STANCE PROGRAM AMENDVENTS

The Commttee heard from the Senate Health Educati on and Soci a
Services Commttee and the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services. The bill noved from Conmi ttee.

HB 193- MODI FI ED BLANKET PRI MARY ELECTI ON

The Commttee heard fromthe sponsor and a forner state Attorney
Gener al .

HB 234- TOBACCO SETTLEM T: BONDS & SMXKI NG PROGRAM

This bill was not in Commttee in tinme for the schedul ed hearing
and therefore was not heard.

#SB218

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 218(TRA) am

"An Act relating to international airports revenue bonds and
requiring that the spending plan for the International
Airports Construction Fund include information about the
anounts spent during the previous fiscal year for cost
overruns on certain projects and the identification of tine
delays on certain projects; relating to custoner facility
charges to fund facilities in airports to be constructed
Wi thout using international airport revenue bonds; and
providing for an effective date."”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

SENATOR JOHN CONDERY testified that the bill raised the limt of
t he bonding authority of the airports to $477, 900, 000. He reni nded
the Commttee of legislation froma few sessions back related to
airport bonds, which he said, was on-going. He shared that "all the
airlines" support SB 218. He pointed out this |egislation requires
no tax dollars and instead, the airlines would contribute from

SFC- 01 (2) 05/ 04/ 01



their revenues generated from |l andi ng fees.

Senator Austerman noted that the cost of the project at the Ted
Stevens International Airport in Anchorage has continued to "spira
up” and he wanted to know if this legislation would apply to the
existing project and related cost overruns or toward a new project.
He pointed out that although the revenue for these bonds is not
recei ved through taxes, the |landing fees are considered a business
expense and the cost is passed along to the consuner in the ticket
prices.

Senat or Cowdery answered that this bill does not apply to previous
projects, but rather new projects. He noted that the airports in
bot h Fai rbanks and Anchorage would qualify for funding under this
| egi slation. He stated that the purpose of this legislation is to
utilize the revenues collected fromlanding fees by the airlines
for new projects. Otherw se, he explained, these revenues woul d be
spent on the existing upgrade project. He noted this |egislation
allows the funds to be received earlier than the fifteen years it
woul d take if not for this |egislation.

KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities, added that this legislation provides for a
bondi ng package to fund the annual capital inprovenent project
(CP) at the airport system He explained this package was agreed
upon during the previous year's negotiations between the airlines
and the departnent in which the airlines requested a five-year CI P
for their consideration and the authority to issue bonds to fund
t hese inmprovenents rather then the current nethod of "cash fundi ng"
the projects each year

M. Parkan detailed the funding for these projects include the
costs of environnental procedures, securing taxiways and equi pnent
purchases. He pointed out the general annual CIP is unrelated to
the on-going term nal upgrade project with the exception of four
projects that are simlar to the termnal project but were not part
of the original project's "scope". He referred to a letter fromthe
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities to Senator
Cowdery that identifies these key projects.

M. Parkan shared that the agreement upon this debt financing
nmet hod for CIP projects was reached because the airlines wanted
sone certainty as to their annual costs. He noted that under the
current system the airlines incur "spikes" in |anding fees, which
woul d not happen under the proposed nethod. He infornmed this is a
met hod of financing utilized for many airports across the country.

Senat or Austernman asked the status of the existing five-year

SFC- 01 (3) 05/ 04/ 01



term nal upgrade project.

M. Parkan responded that the proposed bond package in this
| egi slation would fund the first two years of the five-year CP
pl an; the first year being FY 0l. He expl ai ned that approximately
$142, 000, 000 woul d be added to existing debt to cover these costs.

Senat or Austerman asked if the legislature would then return to
this issue within three years to consider authorizing an increase
to the bonding limt for this project.

M. Parkan affirmed a second request woul d be nade to i ssue bonds
to fund the final three years of the CIP project.

Senator Ward asked if any projects contained in this bond proposal
repl ace any of the anticipated bond proposals under the extension
of the airport bonds.

M. Parkan answered a question of Senator Ward, repeating that the
proposed bond package contains no projects that are currently part
of the on-going airport extension and upgrade project. He rel ayed
testimony he gave to the Senate Transportation Commttee stating
that there are several proposed projects that relate to the on-
goi ng term nal upgrade, but that do not replace a current project.
He explained these projects were not included in the origina
expansion but are planned to coincide with the current term na
projects. He gave an exanple of hazardous material asbestos
abatenent, noting the extent of the asbestos found when the upgrade
construction began was not anticipated. He said $5 mllion has been
incorporated into the proposed bond package to address asbestos
renmoval. He noted an access control system a nedium voltage
project and some furnishings, are other projects related to, but
not replacenents of, the on-going term nal upgrade project.

Senator Ward asked if Senator Cowdery has the sane understandi ng of
this legislation as M. Parkan testifi ed.

Senat or Cowdery rem nded that he has been working on this matter
for several years and had sponsored the |egislation authorizing
bond issuance for the original term nal expansion and upgrade
project. He told that the departnent had estinated the anount of
asbestos that m ght be present, however nmuch nore was found during
denolition. He stated it was not his intention to "pay for
anything that we'd authorized before"” however, there were cost
overruns with the on-going project.

Senator Ward opined, "That’s the heart of the thing." He enphasized
the $5 million cost overrun was not due to earthquakes, footings,

SFC- 01 (4) 05/ 04/ 01



etc. He qualified he was unsure if the overruns were a result of
fast-tracking the project. He stressed he wanted to ensure the
proposed bond package is not funding m stakes that were made during
the original project. He was concerned if this were so, it would
not be possible to identify and rectify those m st akes.

M . Parkan understood Senator Ward' s concerns and noted that this
| egi sl ati on does not cover any of the costs associated with the
del ays encountered over the permtting and errors in seismc design
wor k. He expressed the intent to provide full disclosure of the
four or five proposed projects that are related to the term na
project to the legislature. He assured that the remai ning projects
in the bond package are unrelated to the term nal upgrade and coul d
not be changed because the bonds woul d be issued specific to those
projects. He inforned that the departnent has relayed the sane
assurances to the airline conpanies.

Senat or Cowdery continued that he understood the problens with the
term nal wupgrade project are eight to nine nonths old and are
related to delays. He recalled that during | egislation authorizing
bond issuance for the term nal project, the departnent assured that
$10 million of insurance was purchased to cover any del ays. He was
uncertain whether $10 million would be adequate to cover all the
costs and he did not know where the remaining funds would cone
from He surm sed that Senator Ward was concerned that funds from
t he new bond package would be utilized to cover these.

Senat or Hof f man requested a copy of the |ist of proposed projects
in the bond package.

M. Parkan distributed a letter the departnent sent to the Senate
Transportation Conmittee. [Copy on file.]

Senat or Austerman expressed concern, saying he did not support
nmoving the bill fromCommttee w thout docunmentation that shows the
projects funded in the original bond package, and the proposed
projects that would be funded through this |egislation.

M. Parkan responded that the letter should address Senator
Austerman’ s concerns. He stated the "whol e purpose of this package
is as aresult of the airlines' request that we use debt financing
for the annual CP."

Senat or Austerman did not oppose this nethod of financing, but
stressed he did not have enough information to nake a decision
regarding the bill

Senat or Leman questioned the fiscal note from the Departnent of

SFC- 01 (5) 05/ 04/ 01



Revenue. He wanted to know if the sale of these bonds was
considered in relationship to a $52,000 request for the FY 02
budget .

DEVON M TCHELL, Debt WManager, Treasury Division and Executive
Director, Al aska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority, Departnent of
Revenue, answered that the $52,000 is a FY 01 Suppl enental budget
request related to the Al aska Minici pal Bond Bank Authority, which
he informed is a separate entity.

Senat or Leman next asked why the travel and contractual services
were funded with general funds.

M. Mtchell replied these expenses are anticipated prior to the
i ssuance of the bonds and are to cover the costs of the efforts to
mar ket and sell the bonds.

Senator Lenman asked if the Departnent of Revenue recovers these
funds after bonds are sold.

M. Mtchell answered it does not.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the Departnment of Transportation and
Public Facilities testinony is that none of the bonding proceeds
woul d be used to pay for corrections to the problens experienced to
date with the term nal project.

M. Parkan referred to nmaterial distributed that |ists those
proposed projects that are related to the term nal upgrade. [ Copy
on file.] He clarified sone of the proposed projects, such as with
the hazardous naterials are related to the on-going project.

Co-Chair Donley asked how the additional <costs, related to
conpliance with building codes, that are part of the term nal
proj ect are being paid.

DAVI D EBERLE, PE, Regional D rector, Central Region, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage as the project manager on the term nal upgrade
project. He stated that the deficiency corrections are being funded
fromthe overall program contingency, which he said is part of the
original program He noted the departnent has an insurance policy
to cover design flaws and that a claimwuld be filed. He assured
of the departnent's intent of "vigorously pursuing recovery of
t hose costs" but cautioned this would take tine.

Co-Chair Donley asked if all the legal fees related to the problens
with the term nal project were covered under the insurance policy

SFC- 01 (6) 05/ 04/ 01



or if there would be a supplenental budget request the next
sessi on.

M. Eberle answered that the legal fees are currently funded from
the existing project's budget. He stated that how much of these
costs are recovered depends upon the bids submitted for the
remai ni ng work on the project and subsequently, whether there is a
suppl ement al budget request.

Senat or Ward asked for an explanation of the insurance policy and
the process of determning the responsible party and recovering
expenses fromthat party.

M. Eberle detailed that insurance policy was purchased to "cover
the entire project” and explained it covers any design errors or
om ssions related to the engineering work. He shared that the
design firnms are denying responsibility, which he said is standard.
He stated that the insurance conpany has been notified of the
intent to file the claim He stressed the departnent intends to
pursue the responsible party with assistance from the Attorney
CGeneral's Ofice and outside counsel. He estimated it would be two
years before the matter is concluded.

Senator Ward asked if the departnment is also accounting for the
cost of lost revenue due to delay of the project inits claim He
noted the additional retail and airline space the expansion is to
provi de.

M. Eberle responded that those costs could be calculated after the
termnal is operational and revenue is earned.

Senat or Ward requested an estimte of the anmpbunt of |ost revenue,
particularly for the nine nonths to date that the opening has been
del ayed. He understood that exact figures could not be cal cul ated
but wanted an estimate within $400 to $500.

Senat or Austerman referenced the letter from the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities listing the $8.7 million for
the projects that relate to the termnal upgrade. He noted there is
a renai ni ng anmount of $134, 200,000 and asked if for a detail of the
pl anned expendi tures of these funds.

M. Parkan noted that this itemis included in the governor's
proposed FY 02 Capital Budget legislation and stated he would
provide that information. He noted sone projects are partially
funded through federal international airport inprovenent funds,
others are bond funded and a few are revenue-funded projects. He
poi nted out environnental expenses could not be funded with bond

SFC- 01 (7) 05/ 04/ 01



revenues because they are not considered an asset. He shared that
the bond revenue would be used for state match of the federa
funds.

Senator Austerman requested identification of this information in
relation to the bill

AT EASE 11:14 AM/ 11:17 AM

Senat or Austerman asked why this bill was not introduced earlier in
the legislative session since the projects are contained in the
capi tal budget.

M. Parkan responded this bill, sponsored by the Senate
Transportation Conmittee is simlar to one introduced by the
governor in January 2001.

Co-Chair Kelly noted the governor's bill has been in the Senate
Finance Conmttee since the first two weeks of the |egislative
sessi on.

Senat or Ward added that there has been extensive di scussion on the
matter of funding sources, responsibility for the delays, and
whet her the term nal expansion project would essentially need to be
done tw ce. He expressed that although it would be at |east two
years before the responsible party is determ ned, the citizens
woul d pay the price of the project delays and increased costs.

Senator Ward stressed that Senator Cowdery insisted on the new
| egislation, not the Senate Transportation Commttee, which
sponsored it.

Senat or Hof fman noted SB 218 lists the amount of $142.9 million as
t he bonding authority, but the fiscal note increases this anmount by
$5 mllion. He asked for an expl anation.

M. Parkan directed attention to a nore current fiscal note dated
May 2, 2001. He shared that the airline industry requested $5
mllion be changed from bond funding to revenue funding, which he
said reduces the bond armount. It was determned that this fisca
note was not in possession of the Conmttee at this tine.

M. Parkan detailed the $5 mllion in question is for the
rel ocation costs of the airlines and was included in the
negoti ati ons between the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities and the airline conpanies.

Co- Chair Donley wanted to know where the funding cones fromif it

SFC- 01 (8) 05/ 04/ 01



is not bonded.

M. Parkan responded the nonies are fromthe International A rports
Revenue fund. He detailed the |list of proposed projects attached to
the aforementioned letter, explaining the various funding
mechani sms for each

M. Eberle established for Co-Chair Donley, that he is not the
proj ect manager of the term nal extension project, but rather the
overal |l programdirector.

Co-Chair Donley shared that he has | earned that the project nanager
of the termnal project is the sanme project manager of the Al aska
Center for the Performng Arts in Anchorage. He asked if this were
true.

M. Eberle replied that the project manager for the term nal
project is a Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities
enpl oyee. He noted a variety of consultants are working under
contract with the state on this project. One of those consultants,
he inforned is Rise Alaska and the owner of this firm had been
involved in construction of the performng arts center under a
di fferent conpany nane.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the contracts were conpetitively bid
contracts or sole source.

M. Eberle answered the proposals are all conpetitively bid.

Co-Chair Donl ey shared concerns with others in Anchorage about the
cost overruns incurred during construction of the arts center
These concerns, he said, grow because the sane contractor
responsi bl e for those delays is involved in the airport project.

M. Eberle responded that Co-Chair Donley could reviewthe terns of
the contract at any tine.

Co-Chair Donley expressed he also wanted details of the bid
criteria and whether any consideration is given to the past
performance of a contractor.

M. Eberle stated he would provide the evaluation criteria and the
scores given for these bids.

Senator Leman clarified that "contractor" used in this context,

applies to professional managenent, engineers or other technical
servi ce providers.

SFC- 01 (9) 05/ 04/ 01



Senator Geen pointed out that in the future many of these
guestions woul d be answered i n accordance to the provi sions on page
2 of the commttee substitute. These, she explained address
reporting requirenments of expenditures, cost overruns, etc. She
stated her support of these provisions.

Senator Geen offered a notion to nove from Comnmttee, CS SB 218
(TRA) with $25,000 fiscal note fromthe Departnent of Revenue.

There was no objection and the bill MOED from Commi ttee.
AT EASE 11:26 AM/ 11:39 AM
#HB242

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 242(FI N

"An Act relating to reenploynent of and nmedi cal benefits for
retired nmenbers of the teachers' retirenent system and public
enpl oyees' retirenent system relating to the inclusion of
cost-of-living differentials on conpensation and benefits
under the public enployees' retirenment system and providing
for an effective date.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

DENI SE HENDERSON, staff to Representative Pete Kott, testified read
a statement into the record as foll ows.

Basical |y, what House Bill 242 is designed to provide a tool
to bring back retired enployees into the public service
wor kforce as well as retain those who are about to retire and
possibly aide in the further recomrendati on and recruitnment of
younger, qualified enpl oyees.

The bill itself wll make a nodest inprovenent to the Al aska
retirement statutes to assist Alaska' s public enployers in
attracting and retaining qualified workers as workforce
shortages beconme nore pronounced. Enployers throughout the
state now are having difficulty in filling certain vacancies
and this 1is occurring at all levels: the teaching,
prof essional, technical and clerical.

QJY BELL, Director, D vision of Retirenment and Benefits, Departnment
of Admnistration detailed the bill, noting that Sections 1,2,4 and
6 — relate to the teachers retirenment system He pointed out these
sections contain segnments equivalent to those in SB 149, that

SFC-01 (10) 05/ 04/ 01



passed the Senate a week prior.

M. Bell detailed Section 1, which permts school districts to hire
retired teachers after a declaration of a shortage or an
antici pated shortage by a school district. He shared that this
section also allows those retired teachers an option of continuing
to receive their retirenent benefits during their return to
teaching, but no long accrue an additional benefit during their
return. He pointed out there is a sunset provision of the year 2006
to these provisions. He qualified that a proposed conmttee
substitute changes this date to the year 2005.

M. Bell infornmed that Section 6 relates to a "nodest enhancenent™
to medical benefits for Tier Il teachers. He explained this is
designed as a retention plan in that it provides full nedical
coverage paid by the Teachers Retirenent System (TRS) after 25
years of teaching. He noted that currently a teacher is allowed to
retire after 25 years, but does not becone eligible to receive
medi cal benefits until age 60, when the system pays half of the
costs. He also noted there is a "nodest” cost to the TRS fund of
.17 percent. He cal culated the additional cost based on a $40, 000
annual salary to be $68 per teacher per year.

M. Bell next addressed Sections 7 and 8, which nakes equival ent
changes to the Public Enpl oyees Retirenent System (PERS). He |isted
this applies to state as well as political subdivision, such as
muni ci pal governnent enpl oyees, peace officers, professional and
techni cal enpl oyees, and "other workers."

M. Bell stated that Section 10 simlar provides simlar
enhancenent of nedical benefits to public enployees as TRS
enpl oyees, as detail ed above.

M. Bell concluded with Section 11, which sinplifies the nethod the
geographic pay differential is included in the calculation of a
retirement benefit and applies to state enpl oyees. He shared this
is related to | egislation adopted in 1986, which required enpl oyees
hired after that date to spend at |east 50 percent of their tine in
a pay differential area in order for the pay differential to be
included in the calculation of their retirement benefits. He noted
this legislation also included a provision requiring a conparable
anount or "equivalent steps"” in the total service to qualify for
the retirenment pay differential. He stressed the confusing second
portion is hard to interpret and explain to nmenbers, which nakes
career planning difficult. He relayed concerns from the Al aska
State Troopers and the Departnment of Fish and Gane because these
agencies tend to transfer enployees across the state during their
careers. He stated that HB 242 changes the geographic pay

SFC-01 (11) 05/ 04/ 01



differential provision to only require an enployee to spend at
| east 50 percent of their career in a pay differential area to
qualify for the increased benefits in their retirenent.

Senator Austerman asked if this |legislation applies to enpl oyees
who retired under the Retirenent Incentive Plan (RIP) or other
early retirenment efforts.

M. Bell answered that this bill specifically prohibits an early
retiree from returning to work and also does not allow such
enpl oyees to receive these additional considerations. He expl ai ned
an enpl oyee nmust have a "full service" retirement in order to
qualify for the added benefits.

Co- Chair Kelly announced that because nenbers have not had anple
opportunity to review this legislation, he planned to keep it in
the Comm ttee.

Senat or Leman noved to adopt CS HB 242, 22-1LS0885\J as a working
draft.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the sponsor supported the conmttee
substitute.

Ms. Henderson answered yes.
Wt hout objection, the commttee substitute was ADOPTED.
TIM ROGERS, Legislative Program Coordinator, Minicipality of
Anchorage, testified in support of the bill. He told of the "brain
drain" of qualified teachers and the economc necessity for
teachers to retire fromteaching and work in a second career rather
than continue to teach
Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Commttee.
AT EASE 11:52 AM/ 11:56 AM
#HB142

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 142( HES)

"An Act relating to the Al aska tenporary assi stance program
and providing for an effective date."”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

SFC-01 (12) 05/ 04/ 01



Senator Green indicated this legislation allows the Departnent of
Heal th and Social Services to reduce benefits during the nonths of
July, August and Septenber for two-parent famlies participating in
the Al aska Tenporary Assi stance Program (ATAP). She di scussed how
this relates to out-dated |anguage from the discontinued welfare
assi stance programthat was included in ATAP when it was created.
She assured, "This is the piece they need. This is all they need
this year” in order for the departnent to be in conpliance.

Co-Chair Donley noted that the Senate Health and Social Services
commttee substitute does not include all the itens nentioned in
the governor's transmittal letter. [Copy on file.]

JI M NORDLUND, Director, Division of Public Assistance, Departnent
of Health and Social Services, testified the conmttee substitute
is a "stripped down" version of the bill introduced at the
begi nning of the session. He informed that the commttee substitute
contains an "urgent” provision that places the state in conpliance
with federal Tenporary Assistance for Needy Famlies (TANF) statute
that exenpts welfare recipients living in certain Al aska Native
villages fromthe 60-nonth limt on benefits.

[ Tel econference equi pnent tenporally interrupted the neeting.]

M. Nordland explained that other provisions contained in the
original bill yet renoved fromthe commttee substitute, have a
deadl i ne of June 2002 and could therefore be postponed.

SFC 01 # 95, Side B 12:01 PM

M. Nordland informed the Conmttee that the other remaining
provision in the commttee substitute is in response to a court
case chall engi ng statutory | anguage, which had been taken fromthe
| aws governi ng the previous public assistance program but becane
anbi guous when incorporated in the ATAP laws. This |anguage
addressed the seasonal reduction of benefits to two-parent
househol ds. He described the "carried over" |anguage stipul ates the
departnent mnust identify the principal wage earner in a famly and
t he enpl oynent status of that wage earner.

M. Nordl and stressed the |l egislative and Adm nistrative intent was
to require that all two-parent famlies, with the exception of
those wth one parent disabled, should have their benefits reduced
during the sumrer nonths. He explained the rationale was that in
two-parent famlies, one parent should be able to work and al so
because there are nore enpl oynent opportunities during the sumer

SFC-01 (13) 05/ 04/ 01



season. However, he continued, the courts did not consider intent
but rather the "letter of the law' and ruled that the departnent
had failed to perform and eligibility determnation of the
princi pal wage earner and that parent's enploynent status.

M. Nordland stated Section 2 of the commttee substitute, "renoves
that antiquated | aw' and allows the departnent to reduce benefits
to all able-bodied two-parent famlies in the sumrer.

Senator Geen offered a notion to nove SCS CS HB 142 (HES) from
Commttee wth acconpanying Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services zero fiscal note.

There was no objection and the bill MOED from Committee.
AT EASE 12: 03 PM/ 12:05 PM
#HB193

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 193(JUD)

"An Act relating to the primary election and to the nom nation
of candi dates for the general election; and providing for an
effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COHAE LL, JR shared that he has been foll ow ng
this bill since it was heard in the House State Affairs Comm ttee,
whi ch he chairs. He pointed out the nost substantive change nade to
the governor's original version of the bill is the insertion of "to
vote the party's ballot if the voter is permtted by the party's
byl aws” in Section 3, Subsection b on page 2, line 21 of the
comm ttee substitute. He expressed this, "is really getting to the
heart of the issue.”

Representative Coghill infornmed that the | egislation requires that
each political party have a primary election ballot. He conpared
the Senate Judiciary commttee substitute to the House State
Affairs commttee substitute and alluded to differences regarding
the inclusion of nonpartisan and undecl ared party candi dates.

Representative Coghill relayed that the issue of filing petitions
was raised in the Senate Judiciary Commttee and pertinent |anguage
is contained in Section 5 on beginning on page 3 of the Senate
Judiciary conmttee substitute. He pointed out the June 1 filing
date for candidacy and that the petition certification deadline is
the date of the primary el ection.

SFC-01 (14) 05/ 04/ 01



Representative Coghill expressed the reason he was presenting this
bill was due to a conmtnment he nmade to the House Judiciary
Comm ttee chair.

Representative Coghill enphasized, "I really strongly believe.the
party should have the right to select its primary candidate through
the primary election selection process.” He stated that this

commttee substitute allows the political parties to chose their
candidates, and if they so choose, to invite those who are not
affiliated with their party. He said the version of the bill that
passed the House of Representative provided that the parties nust
include the undeclared and nonpartisans wunless that party
specifically chooses to exclude them

Representative Coghill opined that this |egislation should follow a
United States Suprenme Court ruling on California Denocratic Party
vs. Jones, giving the parties the right to chose whet her undecl ared
and nonpartisans are included. "However, | have to confess to you,"
he qualified, "that | know that ny caucus, the other side of the
ai sle, would nuch rather favor the mandated open to the 'U s and
"N s and let the parties exclude themif they so wish." He stressed
this is a policy call.

Representative Coghill again spoke to the United States Suprene
Court case, which resulted from an initiative pertaining to the
bl anket primary, and where the court found that the blanket primary
is unconstitutional and "the right to association was given then,
to the parties.”

Representative Coghill enphasized the Senate Finance Conmittee is
the last forumto determ ne whether the inclusion of undecl ared and
nonpartisans is nmandated or optional. He stated this is to

"protect the party's right to associate freely and put forth a
candidate that they so chose.” He noted that the House State
Affairs commttee substitute would al so be acceptabl e because it
allows a political party to excl ude.

Representative Coghill told how the political parties could be
required to submt their by-laws to the Division of Elections,
stati ng whether they woul d include the undecl ared and nonparti sans.
He noted anot her option would be to default to exclusion unless the
political parties specified otherwise. He stressed that he wanted
the Senate Finance Commttee to nmake this determ nation because he
understood that a closed ballot is "a major policy call in the
State of Al aska."

Representative Coghill comented that the blanket primary system
has not worked well for the political party system He summari zed,

SFC-01 (15) 05/ 04/ 01



"should we allow the parties to chose their own candi dates?" He
poi nted out that undeclared and nonpartisan conprise a |arge
portion of voters in the state. This |egislation, he stated, would
require these voters to make a choice as to whether they wish to be
"involved in the party or |obby the party to allowthemto vote on
their primary ballot."” He remarked, "I think that's right. | think
that's proper.™

Senator W ken asked if the Senate Judiciary commttee substitute
excl udes undecl ared and nonparti san unl ess specifically allowed in
the political party's by-laws, and that a draft commttee
substitute, prepared by the testifier, includes undeclared and
nonparti san unl ess specifically excluded in the party's by-Iaws.

Representative Coghill affirmed.

Senator W1 ken established that the draft conmttee substitute
contains simlar |anguage as the House State Affairs conmttee
substitute, which passed the House of Representatives.

Representative Coghill reaffirmed and noted the draft commttee
substitute contains |anguage from the Senate Judiciary conmttee
substitute pertaining to petitions for candi dacy.

Senator Ward asked if a party could restrict a nenber of another
party fromvoting its ballot.

Representative Coghill affirmed.

Senat or Hof fman asked how voters registered as undeclared or
nonparti san would vote in the primary if the political parties
decided to exclude them He predicted sonme woul d becone angry if
they could not participate in the primary el ection.

Representative Coghill agreed and said this is a policy call. He
noted that wundeclared and nonpartisan voters have had the
opportunity to choose candidates from political parties wthout
joining that party. He read from the Suprene Court ruling "the
voters desire to participate does not becone nore weighty sinply
because the state supports it." He continued reading, "the voter
who feels hinself disenfranchised should sinply join the party that
may put him to a hard choice but it is not a state-inposed
restriction upon his freedom of association that is... Wereas
conpel ling party nmenbers to accept the selection of nomnees is a
state-inposed restriction upon theirs.™

Senat or O son asked about instances where several candi dates from
one party have filed, but few, if any have filed for another party.

SFC-01 (16) 05/ 04/ 01



He asked if there is a nechanismto address this.

Representative Coghill replied, "That's what the general election
process is all about."™ He stated that one party should have the
right to select fromseveral candidates of its party even if there
are no ot her candi dates outside that party

AVRUM GRCSS testified in Juneau as chair of "a taskforce to rewite
the state's prinmary laws after it becane clear that the existing
| aw was unconstitutional.” He listed the taskforce nenbership as
including all the forner |ieutenant governors of the state, both
Republ i can and Denocrat, and two forner Attorneys General. He
described the taskforce's charge to draft |egislation addressing
the matter.

M. Goss detailed the issues was because Al aska had a bl anket
primary, which he defined as one ballot containing all candi dates
fromall political parties and thus allow ng voters to select a
candidate fromany party for each office regardl ess of the voter's
party affiliation. He noted that the U S. Supreme Court, in
California Denocratic Party versus Jones, ruled that a party could
chose to restrict the people who could vote for its candidates in
the primary election. He informed there has to be a nechanism
whereby the state recogni zed the desire of the parties tolimt the
peopl e who could participate in selecting its candi dates.

M. Goss relayed that the taskforce heard testinony from the
political parties, then drafted a law that was "as close to the
existing law as we could" and yet incorporate the Suprene Court
decision. The resulting |l egislation, he said, proposes a "nodified
bl anket primary law', which provides that a ballot lists all the
candidates from all the parties and was available to any voter
unless a party decided inits by-laws that it did not wish certain
people to participate in the selection of that party's candi dates.

M. Goss detailed the taskforce's recommendati on to have ballots
that contain the candidates from all parties not excluded by a
specific political party. He gave an exanple, saying if the
Denocratic Party determ ned that nenbers of the Republican Party
should not vote for their candidates, no Denocratic candi dates
woul d appear on the ballot available for Republican voters.
However, he continued, candi dates fromother political parties that
have not made such a decision with regard to the Republican Party,
woul d appear on the ballot available to Republican voters in
addition to the Republican candidates. He explained that all
ballots would contain candidates from all parties except for
ballots available to a party in which another party has determ ned
shoul d not be allowed to vote for its candidates. In this nmanner,

SFC-01 (17) 05/ 04/ 01



he sai d, candi dates from sone parties could appear on nore than one
bal | ot .

M. Goss surmsed that this nethod recognizes the Suprene Court
case, by allowing parties to |[imt the people who vote for its
candi dates. However, he pointed out, this does not prohibit people
fromvoting for candidates of different parties in sone races if
that party allowed themto. He enphasized this retains the bl anket
primary.

M. Goss expressed the taskforce's intent to encourage the maxi mum
anount of public participation in the primary el ection process to
the extent that parties do not prohibit it. He shared the
taskforce's understanding that the nore races a voter is allowed to
participate in, the nore encouraged they would be to vote in the
primary el ection.

M. Goss told the Commttee that the version of the bill passed by
the House of Representatives is no longer a blanket primary.
I nstead, he stated, the House State Affairs comrittee substitute
establishes a set of closed primaries, each party having its own
ballot. He pointed out that the only voters who can receive a
ball ot are nmenbers of the political party or those who that party
has determ ned are allowed that ballot. He stressed that this
nmethod does not allow nonpartisan and wundeclared voters to
participate in different primary races. He explained that the only
candi dates a nonpartisan or undecl ared voter can chose are fromthe
one party included on the ballot. He added that this applies to al
races.

M. &Goss noted the governor had no input in the original
| egi sl ati on other than introducing what the taskforce drafted to
the legislature. He stated, "W thought a closed primary system
would really shut down the process and not encourage people to
participate.” He remarked that even with the current blanket
primary system voter participation has reduced and as a result,
"we were fundanmental |y opposed—-and | nean Republicans and Denocrats
alike on this commssion, this isn't a partisan effort- to setting
up a closed primary. That was the wuniversal view of the
conmmi ssion. "

M. Goss asserted the House State Affairs conmttee substitute is
a "seriously restricted bill. It changes the primary system of
Al aska radically.”" He stated it is, "giving parties control over
the system control not mandated by the Suprene Court." 1In
addition, he said, "This is a totally different concept."” He
expressed that besides affecting voter participation, "in the end
the state sets up the process by which candi dates are nom nated for

SFC-01 (18) 05/ 04/ 01



the general election. If the state sets it up, it should allow, it
seens to nme, the maxi num nunber of citizens to participate in that
process.” He remarked that the conmttee substitute instead
m nimzes citizen participation by discouraging their participation
in the primary system He stated, "You can do this in the nane of
partisan politics if you want, but at the sane tine, the voters
don't have any other way to nmake their views known."

M. Goss pointed out that over sixty percent of the voters in
Al aska are not registered to a political party. He stressed that
the task force objected to a primary system directed only for
political parties, and that encourages voters to join parties they
ot herwi se do not want to join.

Senator Austerman referenced |anguage inserted to Section 6, on
page 4, line 31 and page 5, lines 1 and 2 of the Senate Judiciary
commttee substitute. This | anguage reads as fol |l ows.

(17) if the candidacy is for the office of the
governor, the nane of the candidate for |ieutenant governor
running jointly with the candi date for governor.

New Text Underl i ned

Senat or Austerman asked the wtness to comment on this | anguage.
M. Goss replied that the taskforce never addressed this matter.

Representative Coghill noted this was not included in earlier
versions of the bill and that he had no know edge of any
di scussions on the matter. He explained the |anguage relates to
provisions for a candidate seeking nom nation by petition and
stipulates that a gubernatorial and |ieutenant governor candi date
are listed together on a filing petition.

Senat or Ward asked if undecl ared and nonparti san voter could vote
any ballot under this bill.

Representati ve Coghill responded that the parties would chose which
voters could receive a ballot containing that party's candi dates.

Senator W1 ken asked which version of the bill M. Goss supports.
M. Goss responded he supports the original bill that was
i ntroduced by the governor in the House of Representatives, which
he pointed out is conpletely different than any version here.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.

SFC-01 (19) 05/ 04/ 01



#
ADJ QURNVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly recessed the neeting at 12:31 PM

SFC-01 (20) 05/ 04/ 01



